When telephoning, please ask for:

Democratic Services 0115 914 8320

Direct dial Email

democraticservices@rushcliffe.gov.uk

Our reference: Your reference:

Date: Wednesday, 27 November 2024

To all Members of the Council

**Dear Councillor** 

A Meeting of the Council will be held on Thursday, 5 December 2024 at 7.00 pm in the Council Chamber, Rushcliffe Arena, Rugby Road, West Bridgford to consider the following items of business.

This meeting will be accessible and open to the public via the live stream on YouTube and viewed via the link: <a href="https://www.youtube.com/user/RushcliffeBC">https://www.youtube.com/user/RushcliffeBC</a> Please be aware that until the meeting starts the live stream video will not be showing on the home page. For this reason, please keep refreshing the home page until you see the video appear.

Yours sincerely

Sara Pregon Monitoring Officer

### **AGENDA**

Moment of Reflection

- 1. Apologies for absence
- Declarations of Interest

Link to further information in the Council's Constitution

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 26 September 2024 (Pages 1 - 16)

To receive as a correct record the minutes of the Meeting of the Council held on Thursday, 26 September 2024.

- 4. Mayor's Announcements
- 5. Leader's Announcements
- 6. Chief Executive's Announcements



Fmail:

customerservices @rushcliffe.gov.uk

Telephone: 0115 981 9911

www.rushcliffe.gov.uk

Postal address

Rushcliffe Borough Council Rushcliffe Arena Rugby Road West Bridgford Nottingham NG2 7YG



#### 7. Citizens' Questions

To answer questions submitted by Citizens on the Council or its services.

- 8. Petitions
- 9. Appointment of the Chief Executive (Pages 17 22)

The report of the Monitoring Officer and Head of Chief Executive's Department is attached.

10. Tollerton Neighbourhood Plan (Pages 23 - 130)

The report of the Director – Development and Economic Growth is attached.

11. Barton in Fabis Community Governance Review (Pages 131 - 144)

The report of the Chief Executive is attached.

12. Gambling Act 2005 - Draft Statement of Licensing Principles 2025-2028 (Pages 145 - 188)

The report of the Director – Neighbourhoods is attached.

13. Street Trading Policy 2025-2030 (Pages 189 - 252)

The report of the Director – Neighbourhoods is attached.

14. Polling Districts and Polling Places Review (Pages 253 - 270)

The report of the Chief Executive is attached.

15. Notices of Motion

To receive Notices of Motion

### a) Councillor Inglis

The Borough of Rushcliffe, along with other parts of the County, is often affected by what are commonly known as "Car Meets" or "Cruisers" which are a cause of significant concern to many residents across the Borough, constitute Anti-Social Behaviour and are a risk to public safety.

Current Road Traffic Laws cover some aspects of this but are not sufficient in prevention.

The aim of this motion is to ensure that gatherings/meetings are pre notified and approved, and therefore authorised by the Police and stakeholder Partnerships, with appropriate tools for authorities to tackle any breaches thus providing a simple means of deterrent, dispersal and prosecution.

#### This Council resolves:

To write to the Home Secretary and the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government to request that the Government instigates new legislation surrounding car cruising meetings/gatherings to implement a legal requirement for organisers to pre-notify the relevant authorities as to when and where such a meeting is planned, and that a failure to do so will result in any attendee being liable to prosecution/dispersion.

# b) Councillor Chewings

#### Council notes that:

- a. The poor state of many roads in Rushcliffe is of significant concern to road users resulting in complaints to Councillors
- b. Poor road surface conditions can lead to physical damage to vehicles.
- c. The Local Government Association (LGA) has noted that, because of inflation and materials shortages, the cost of repairing a pothole has increased by 22 per cent.
- d. The LGA has reported that councils in the UK face a £16.3 Billion road repair backlog.
- e. The additional £500Million allocated in the Autumn budget for potholes. Council believes that the Government's 'pothole fund' is a totally inadequate response to this situation. The additional £500Million goes nowhere near the £16.3 Billion road repaid backlog as reported by the LGA on the 12th August 2024.

## Council therefore resolves to:

- Write to our two MPs to express our concerns regarding the inadequate funding for road repairs and its significant impact on residents. Request that they urgently lobby the Government to provide sufficient funding to address this issue.
- Write to the Rt Hon Louise Haigh MP, Secretary of State for Transport, urging the immediate allocation of funds to improve the condition of countryside roads.
- Write to Nottinghamshire County Council to raise the Council's concerns about the deteriorating condition of roads within Rushcliffe. Request a comprehensive response detailing the underlying causes of this issue, a clear plan to address the disrepair, and an explanation of any barriers hindering progress.

## c) Councillor Birch

This Council recognizes the invaluable contributions that farmers make to Rushcliffe borough. This motion affirms our unwavering support for Rushcliffe's farming community. We are grateful for their hard work and expertise.

#### This Council notes that:

- 1. Farmers provide essential services in food production, land stewardship, and conservation.
- 2. Farming is a challenging industry, facing increasing pressures from rising operational costs, volatile markets, changing weather, and evolving regulations.
- 3. Farmers contribute significantly to the local economy, rural employment, and food security, helping to ensure affordable and sustainable food supplies.
- 4. Small family farms are at the heart of our rural communities, contributing not only to local food production but also to the cultural and social fabric of the area.
- 5. The work of farmers represents a legacy of stewardship, community support, and traditional skills passed down through generations.

#### This Council believes that:

- 1. Farmers deserve our respect and appreciation.
- 2. Farmers deserve recognition for their vital role in maintaining a thriving rural community and contributing to the local economy.
- 3. Support for farmers is essential not only for secure food production but also to preserve our rural heritage, landscapes, and biodiversity.

### This Council resolves to:

- 1. Formally declare our gratitude to Rushcliffe's farming community.
- 2. Ensure, where possible, that food and drink at council-organised events is sourced from local farms.
- 3. Commission a feasibility study of agroforestry partnerships with local farmers, which will help local farms whilst simultaneously helping council offset carbon emissions.

## d) Councillor Clarke MBE

The Borough of Rushcliffe is home to many farming families, with a large proportion of the Borough being rural. This Council recognises the important part farmers play, both in the local economy and in growing food to put on the tables of our residents.

In the recent budget, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced devastating changes to Inheritance Tax, which the National Farmers Union (NFU) has described as a "hammer blow to farming families". Farmers work long hours with very tight margins in their businesses due to the continuing significant rising costs of animal feed, energy costs and labour costs etc.

The budget changes threaten to cripple many family farms, which rely on passing down land to relatives to continue their vital work in feeding the Borough and country. Family farms are asset rich and cash poor, with no means to pay such punitive amounts of inheritance tax, leaving the only option to sell land, thus rendering the farm unviable. This will have a huge impact on our farming communities in Rushcliffe.

#### This Council therefore resolves to:

- Write to the Chancellor of the Exchequer to call upon her to reverse the changes to Inheritance Tax rules for farmers and to explain the reasons why.
- Write to Robert Jenrick MP to thank him for his opposition to the tax changes and ask that he continues to lobby the Chancellor on our behalf.
- 3) Write to James Naish MP to ask him to join us in opposing the Chancellor's decision and to lobby her on our behalf in order to change the decision.
- 4) Record our thanks to the farmers of Rushcliffe for all the intensive hard work they do on behalf of Rushcliffe residents to put food on our tables.
- 5) Write to the local representatives of the National Farmers Union to express our support for the call to reverse the new tax changes.

#### 16. Questions from Councillors

To answer questions submitted by Councillors

## Membership

Chair: Councillor A Brown

Vice-Chair: Councillor J Cottee

Councillors: M Barney, J Billin, T Birch, R Bird, A Brennan, R Butler, S Calvert, J Chaplain, K Chewings, N Clarke, T Combellack, S Dellar, A Edyvean, S Ellis, G Fletcher, M Gaunt, E Georgiou, P Gowland, C Grocock, R Inglis, R Mallender, S Mallender, D Mason, P Matthews, H Om, H Parekh, A Phillips, L Plant, D Polenta, N Regan, D Simms, D Soloman, C Thomas, R Upton, D Virdi, J Walker, R Walker, L Way, T Wells, G Wheeler, J Wheeler and G Williams

## **Meeting Room Guidance**

**Fire Alarm Evacuation:** In the event of an alarm sounding please evacuate the building using the nearest fire exit, normally through the Council Chamber. You should assemble at the far side of the plaza outside the main entrance to the building.

**Toilets:** Are located to the rear of the building near the lift and stairs to the first floor.

**Mobile Phones:** For the benefit of others please ensure that your mobile phone is switched off whilst you are in the meeting.

**Microphones:** When you are invited to speak please press the button on your microphone, a red light will appear on the stem. Please ensure that you switch this off after you have spoken.

# **Recording at Meetings**

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 allows filming and recording by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council's control.

Rushcliffe Borough Council is committed to being open and transparent in its decision making. As such, the Council will undertake audio recording of meetings which are open to the public, except where it is resolved that the public be excluded, as the information being discussed is confidential or otherwise exempt